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2 ZRWE THE POSTMASTER GENERAL'S STATEMENT
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2013/14 was a year of consolidation for Hongkong Post. With the concerted effort of our
team, we saw a significant improvement in the financial performance of the Post Office Trading

Fund. Although still falling short of the target rate of return, the Post Office Trading Fund’s
operating loss was narrowed notably from $114 million a year ago to $2.6 million in 2013/14.
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he improved financial performance was partly due to the additional revenue arising

from the long overdue principal postage adjustments which took effect on 1 October
2013 and the adjustments to certain miscellaneous postal fees under the Post Office
Regulations (Cap 98A) from 1 December 2013. It also owed much to our rigorous efforts
in cost management and business development.

Provision of postal service is a labour-intensive undertaking. With a workforce of
over 7 000 staff, payroll costs account for a significant portion of our operating
expenditure. During the year, we implemented various measures to contain payroll
costs. The installation of upgraded mail sorting machines with a more powerful
optical character reading capability at the Central Mail Centre is a case in point.
Coupled with ongoing efforts to require bulk mailers to improve the address
presentation in their mail, the read rate of standard machinable letter mail now
exceeds 90% and the extent of manual processes is correspondingly reduced.
With the establishment of a new Bulk Air Mail Centre in Tsuen Wan and a bulk
acceptance counter at the Central Mail Centre, we have further streamlined the
handling of bulk postings through more extensive work sharing with bulk mailers
and load levelling measures, e.g. pre-booking of posting slots which reduces the
queuing time of mailers and slack time in our mail processing units.

The implementation of these cost management measures is not in any way at the
expense of operating performance. We achieved all our performance pledges
during the year and, indeed, well exceeded some of our performance pledges. This
is particularly impressive given the very high performance standards we have set
ourselves, e.g. to deliver 99% of locally posted letters to local addressees by the
following working day.

In response to the evolving service needs of our customers, we have continued to
look for innovative solutions. The launch of Smart Post, a door delivery-cum-counter
collection local mail service with electronic notification and mail tracking, and the
extension of e-Express service, an economical tracked service for small packets,
to four additional destinations are timely responses to the demand of local and
international online shoppers for customer-friendly delivery solutions. The digital
age offers new business opportunities for the postal industry; and we in Hongkong
Post are quick to seize them.

Hongkong Post maintains an extensive postal infrastructure comprising counter
offices and various back end mail processing facilities. We are always on the
lookout for ways to rationalise and diversify the utilisation of this infrastructure. The
integration of the International Mail Centre and the sorting office at the General Post
Office into the Central Mail Centre enables us to achieve economy of scale in mail
processing. During the year, we have made proactive effort to attract Government
departments and external organisations to make use of our post offices and
second pouch boxes for advertising purpose, thus introducing a new revenue
stream. Preparation for the reprovisioning of the General Post Office Building is
now underway, opening up scope for consolidating various offices now in different
locations. In the year ahead, we will further examine the scope for rationalising our
post office network with the objective of dovetailing our service points with service
demand while ensuring economy.
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Hongkong Post has an ingrained service culture. \We take pride in constantly
enhancing the experience of our customers when using our services. The
establishment of a new Business Customer Liaison Group provides a forum for two-
way communication with our valued business customers. The feedback obtained
will enable us to be more responsive to the service needs of this important client
segment.

The challenges that Hongkong Post has been facing in recent years have prompted
us to implement resolute measures to improve our financial and operational
performance as well as corporate governance. Although we are not yet completely
out of the woods, there is a clear sense of direction and purpose. Despite the odds,
we remain firmly focused on our mission of providing a professional and efficient
postal service to the local community at reasonable and affordable prices.  With
steady effort and an unyielding spirit as well as the support of our customers, we
are building a more solid foundation for the Post Office Trading Fund to support its
sustainable development into the future.

/.
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Mrs. Jessie TING
Postmaster General and General Manager of
the Post Office Trading Fund
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Local Mail Business o BITBMBE - e Issue of Definitive, Special
BRIHER LR and Commemorative Stamps

© AiefEtE * Local Letter BE e Local Standing Order Service

e el * BT RS * Overseas Mail Order Service

o Aii5REH o Local Registered Mail o BHABRITHBRS o Heartwarming Stamps

o AiEEIEIE  Local CourierPost o [MEMLE| BE  Customised Service

© HERE * Smart Post T BIRT R 15 e Customised Gifts Service

- E#BEER * Hongkong Post ” o TREREH

5 R Circular Service
o HEE e e-Post

, IR
Inte_rnatlonal Mail
Business

o ZE/FEEFEMH o Air/Surface Letter
o ZH/THMEE o Air/Surface Parcel
o ZEELFEEEE e Air/Surface

s Registered Mail
o BHIREIE e Speedpost
o RERFZEHM o Bulk Air Mail
* e-Express * e-Express
o SEE e iMail®

PEEEMEEMG o Cross-border Direct Mail

In this era of electronic communications and increasingly varied customer expectations, Hongkong Post’s operations face ever-
changing business dynamics and challenges. Nevertheless, these challenges have brought us opportunities to sharpen our
efficiency, diversify our product offerings and improve customer experience.

In 2013/14, Hongkong Post continued to develop different products and services to meet customer needs. In response to the
market demand for personalised delivery solutions as a result of e-commerce development, a new Smart Post service with an
economical track-and-trace function and a choice between local delivery and counter collection was introduced. In addition,
a web-based direct marketing platform (DMDIY.hk) was launched to enable merchants to design fit-for-purpose promotional
campaigns using multiple channels.

To maintain the financial sustainability of the Post Office Trading Fund, we continued to pursue various cost management
measures and implement productivity enhancement initiatives. The new Central Mail Centre is taking up the mail processing
function which has for many years been split between two sorting centres located on the two sides of the harbour, thus realising
improved efficiency and economy of scale in postal operations. The Integrated Postal Services System, which is being rolled out,
will automate counter operations and streamline back end support functions, while enhancing customer experience when using
our frontline services.
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¢ “Make My Card”

ﬂ% E( Retall Business ¢ ﬁ';%%%n Personalised Service
o HHE e PayThruPost o [HILEF]

B SR AR %5 e Remittance Service e e
o RS R e PostShop Products ’
o B EHFRTE e Counter Collection Service
o IREARRTE  Trade Declaration Service
o EREMERRSL o Registration Service for the -
BRERTE Road Cargo System
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Mail Volume

In 2013/14, Hongkong Post handled 1.23 billion mail items (or a daily average
of 3.38 million items), representing a 9.4% decrease from 2012/13 or a 6.2%
decrease when excluding election mail handled in 2012.

Local mail, which accounted for 84.0% of the total mail traffic, dropped by
9.0% over 2012/13 (or 5.0% when excluding election mail). International
mail, which accounted for the remaining 16.0% of traffic, registered an 11.8%
decrease. The major destinations for outgoing international letters and parcels
were the United States, Australia, the United Kingdom, Mainland China and
Canada.
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Asia & Asia Pacific General Mail Services Staff Costs

B o AU ~BBBEERS

Europe North America Miscellaneous Revenue General Mail Operating Expenses
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Africa South America

CEEBINBMM
Major overseas destinations
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Financial Performance

The principal postage rates and some miscellaneous postal fees, many of which
had remained unchanged for over a decade, were revised respectively on 1
October 2013 and 1 December 2013. This helped ease our financial situation
during the year. Hongkong Post’s total operating revenue in 2013/14 was
HK$5,249.2 million, an increase of 1.4% over 2012/13. Coupled with a 0.7%

decrease in operating costs, the overall operating loss was reduced to around
HK$2.6 million for the year. The rate of return on average net fixed assets was

-0.5% in 2013/14.

=1 BRI

Letter Mail Registered Mail
ERBH Hith
BREBFRY Others

Hongkong Post
Circular Service
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Local CourierPost
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Local mail volume
(million:items)
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Air Mail Speedpost
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Surface Mail
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Direction Tearwark
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Open Communication

KEREME o BRENK

Learning & Growth

Strategic
Perspectives

o BEEHREAL
% % . World Class People
Strategies

BEEa © BEBWAS

Management Succession
Cluster of Goals
o RATIEREN

Job Competency

o BERBTERE
Career Development

° BEETIR
High Morale

o BN
Cultural Alignment

° KRRIFEE
Good Employer

o HFHBEBXL
Learning Organisation
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Purpose, Vision, Mission, Values

Our Purpose - Linking People, Delivering Business

In Linking People, Hongkong Post strives to fulfill our social obligation
to bring people together locally and around the world by delivering
correspondence and merchandise promptly and reliably at uniform,
affordable prices.

In Delivering Business, Hongkong Post creates added value for the economy
of Hong Kong by providing business solutions to different sectors and
maintaining the viability of Hongkong Post through diversification into new
business areas.

e REAERER
Care for Customers from the
Heart

e RRAREER

Care for Colleagues from the

Heart

e BRBIE o BIHRE
Customers Financial

* BENAERAN o HERFEINIEE

Customer Focused Organisation Sustained Profitability

e EREEFRE o RIEBENG
Know the Customers Productivity Enhancement
s MEEERE o BIEEEHIBLA
Customer Satisfaction Cost Control

o BYBRBM ° HRFTEE

Customer Loyalty Business Growth

s HOEKER
Business Expansion
s ZERMIER

Loss Minimisation

BMHEE

o MABEBRRHERRBEHEE
o MARZIRAR LB EHHKES

BRMEED

s BY—XBROEN  BRFENTERM
o WZBRMEE  RERERBCEZHONE
BRIFEE - RBRWERARERE

o

. BEEE - BERDR
BANER

c BRAEENFAEEMN

s B¥B®R RALRE-

o EEME
Productivity
o BRI

Innovation

* MAME

Value for Money

o HIBAIFTRK

Innovate for the Future

s ZLEBEE

Business Diversification

o FAERRIEAE
Strategic Cooperation

o FHEEER
Long-term Viability

HEAE - FFERAE

G F e e

Our Vision
* To be recognised in Hong Kong as an outstanding service organisation

¢ To be recognised worldwide as an outstanding postal service

Our Mission

* To anticipate changes and respond proactively

Our Values
¢ To care about our customers and our colleagues

B HE HL
Proactivity

EHA®

Development

e

Internal Processes

BR et AR R
World Class Facilities

5B B AR
Cost-effective & Efficient
Facilities

THERRZ R

Safe Workplace

F 7 Delivering Business

o R
Excellence

o BIEERIE
Anticipation

s BRBEEEENE
Modern Business
Management Systems

o RATFHE
Process Efficiency

o SERMBER
World Class IT

s BEXRRHE
Quality Performance Data /
Information

s HEEER
Total Quality Management
Excellence

o BHTISHRS
Match Competitors

* To be a totally committed and valued workforce
e To achieve consistently the highest levels of customer satisfaction

* To be a viable business with sufficient resources to invest in our future

¢ To excel through development, teamwork and innovation

o B BEER
Reputable Brand

o RABELR
Local Corporate Image

o REEFRE
International Postal
Reputation

s BITHEEME
Social Responsibility

° BFRIRET
Environmental
Responsibility
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TERELZL
Mrs. Jessie TING
BEEBHRER

Postmaster General

The Organisation

EAERER

- Postmaster
General

HAKERE
Mr. NGAI Wing Chit
EEBHAIER

Deputy Postmaster General
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ARELL REBEu+ BEBELLT
Ms. Estella CHOW Miss Amy NG Ms. Teresa AU
EEBRYPRER (EBRE) EEBRYHRER (ABRE) ERTBRYEER (BH)
Assistant Postmaster General Assistant Postmaster General Assistant Postmaster General
(Business Development) (Corporate Development) (Postal)

HERRE

Corporate Development

REBBR

Business Development

B

Postal Services

B %5

Financial Services

HIER

External Affairs

. //ﬁ ‘i

MIKER &
Mr. Patrick A LIN
BE (B

Director (External Affairs)

* TRE

s BEE

* REMER

o FE AL

* AAERLRY

e REARE
HEMHE

o FIRER

s P RIE

o AE MR E

s MERET

o BIFRE 1+
o Wi
o BIIRIE
o PITH 75
o EENRE
o EEXIR
* BE IR

s REERE

o ERERMLRE  A
Bt REEREM
BBt
BIER R RS
BEGSaR

o BITSECTE

o MR IE

o LMK
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AglExE BmEEE Bl T4 FRF L EEMEL L

Mr. Lorrience CHOW  Mr. Arthur LAU Mr. Leo YAN Ms. Vivien LEE Mrs. Connie NGAN
weE (1) BE (AMARIRE) weE (EF) BE (RBHARE MPIRE

Director (Finance) Director (Information System Director (Operations) HERHEE) Departmental Secretary

Services)

e Administrative Services

* Management Services

¢ Planning and Development
* New Mail Centre

e Information System Services

e Product Development,
Marketing and Sales

e Speedpost

e Customer Relationship Management
e Certification Authority Monitoring

e Stamps and Philately

¢ International Mail

* Mail Processing

¢ Mail Distribution

e Retail Business

e Productivity Services
¢ Operations Support
e Customer Service

e Cash Management

e Stamp Supply, Revenue Accounts
and PO Box

¢ International Mail Accounts

e Financial Management and Systems

e Financial Analysis

¢ Financial Monitoring

e Supplies

¢ International and Mainland Relations

e International Letters

¢ International Parcels and Mail
Circulation

Director (Product
Development, Marketing and

Sales)

s ARBHYPEER(HBER)
o BiFIRE
o BE (B RART)

s EEBHYEER(EHER)
c ME(RBIAR - HERHEE)

* ERBHBEE K (HT)
o MBS (EF)

o HEL(W75)

o BES(HIINET)

[

e Assistant Postmaster General
(Corporate Development)

¢ Departmental Secretary

¢ Director (Information
System Services)

e Assistant Postmaster General
(Business Development)

e Director (Product Development,
Marketing and Sales)

e Assistant Postmaster General
(Postal)
e Director (Operations)

¢ Director (Finance)

¢ Director (External Affairs)
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ZHEBEHEFA

Web-based Direct Marketing Platform

HH2HZHEBEE TS (DMDIY.hk) @ ERFEB—UWAP L FEETRE
EXREENTREFEA -

A new web-based direct marketing service, DMDIY.hk, was launched to enable businesses to
plan, create, produce and distribute direct mail and digital communication using a one-stop online

|~ & BIEM

platform.

FBENDHE |
SRR New Stamp Sheetlet B 0 W
Tl BT [REHHITE] BR/)AR - 2B EacR T
B [5XE] R - RESRMSEO R4 RIEREC BERS o ABRHS

A stamp sheetlet on the theme of “Kai Tak Cruise
Terminal” was issued to commemorate the inaugural
berthing at the new facility.

A customer-friendly mail delivery-cum-counter collection local mail service, Smart Post, was launched.

TR FH=
T |'§3 e New Stamp Issue
5 i s R [REEGER] AENERIBER (LBLE] BE/VRE
New Stamp Issue I =1 3 | . B,
BT [E(LBAELRE] AEKIBE - *‘?—'imrﬂm NRE R BRIEEXE -

A set of special stamps and "Heartwarming Stamps" mini-panes on the
theme of “Chinese and Western Wedding Customs” were released to
_ introduce the unique wedding culture in Hong Kong.

W - —— oy ————
A set of special stamps on the theme of “Revitalisation of f . L7 =
son Bings o Ko v ladl-=idw

Historic Buildings in Hong Kong” was issued.

iﬂﬁaﬁ'ﬁﬂfgﬁf EMTR ﬂ u
Postage Prepaid Postcards 2
HEBESHBEER [KAEXL] RBEENBERRRES
[FdgFEDREY] -

A set of postage prepaid postcards, “Polar Adventure”, and a

postage prepaid postcard prestige gift set, “Funny Marine Life and
Animals”, were released.

Hh o 5 4 F
Central Mail Centre
FRRBHFROE2013F7ASHBERBREBEHI -

The Central Mail Centre was officially handed over to
Hongkong Post on 5 July 2013.

[DBLE] BRPRE g

"Heartwarming Stamps" Mini-pane =l ==
%17 [LBLE] BEMRE - U#EsBR2EAN013 *135 TR 5 FRABRAME NS

. ! Kahala Posts Group CEO Meeting
REBRE - ‘:g H‘, I,.-III aw
A "Heartwarming Stamps" mini-pane was released on the 4 7 e ERBHEIZRIFENMEETOR G BRAMERES -
occasion of Hongkong Post’s participation in the Australia 2013 H ‘ ‘g. % #ﬁi_: ..... Y, The Deputy Postmaster General attended the Kahala Posts Group
World Stamp Expo. ?? 3&* CEO Meeting held in Singapore.

BBEBBEFR 2013/14
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11 Bl KBREXTTZ= K Asian-Pacific Postal Union

Thedth Asian=RPacific. Postal lUnion Congress CQngress
HEAEEREES EAEBRERAPBERERERK

EHoHFENENEREENT
B9 25 11 @ g2 N K 2 8 Bk R
K/IS%\ o

The Postmaster General
attended the 11th Asian-Pacific
Postal Union Congress held in
New Delhi, India as part of the
China delegation.

SEPTEMBER

EEERZERTEOMNRE

Direct to Bank Account Remittance Service

EEBHBRAMETE L ERERZEPEAMRITE OMNRY -

A new Direct to Bank Account Remittance Service for Mainland China was launched in
collaboration with Western Union.

2

AUGUST

BRYERBRESEHANE

High-level Forum on Postal Reform and Development
EABHHEHERBRAERRILRBTH [EAMERBRNFEABERGERIE]  NREER
B ER 55 K 3[R H th B IR AR Y B 1F o

Hongkong Post attended the “High-level Forum on Postal Reform and Development in the Asian-Pacific

Region” organised by the State Post Bureau in Beijing, China to foster cooperation between Hongkong FH=
Post and other postal operators in the Asia Pacific region. i

o= H*MNGBUSES
> T NG BREE
I'?M ininis M

New Stamp Issue
BT TEEEL] ABENEHEER  MALRTREFAHE LR -

A special stamp set on the theme of “Hong Kong Buses” was issued, featuring seven bus models
— from different decades.

Wil B tign w5 e

MEENEER

New Stamp Sheetlet

BT [HEERBERSIE 5% ETau
RENBR/NAIE o

A stamp sheetlet on the theme of “World Heritage
in China Series No. 2: The Old Town of Lijiang”

AETERE

New Principal Postage Rates

A FEBEHA2013F10A1BRER - BEBRMEL [PNCBERRGE] £20145F1
A ARHRNERHRRES

New principal postage rates took effect from 1 October 2013. To provide relief to local SMEs, a
Concessionary Scheme for SMEs on Postage Rebate ran until January 2014.

was issued.
MEE
A sm?i New Stamp Issue ’
[ pa A= | She =
OCTOBER Bl BITL [RELENT] ARNBRIBE  BRRAMRELBIR
- i REOMTAER -
‘ :ié A set of special stamps on the theme of “Inclusive Arts”
;ﬁ was issued, highlighting the colourful artworks of local ‘
] ¢ disabled artists.
il -
o | Report 2013/14 EBHBEFIR 2013/14
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NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

-
port 2013/14

BE R AR 75

Remittance Service

REFEE T ERRBNE R FIEMN20ME - BBUEE41E -

20 additional post offices became service outlets for the electronic remittance service offered in
collaboration with Western Union, bringing the total to 41.

MR

New Stamp Issue

HEH A TRIFT R | AENSRIESE - NMaEENE-IH
RHx #685

A special stamp set entitled “Innovation and Technology”,
which featured six areas of innovation and technology in Hong
Kong, was released.

AEBHE A
Adjustment of Postal Fees
(HBHERG) (F98AE) THHHOBERERH2013F12A1BEIELFAE -

Miscellaneous postal fees under the Post Office Regulations (Cap 98A) were adjusted from 1 December
2013.

FEHE

New Stamp Issue

B [RMNDEE | RERRSRIEE -

A set of special stamps entitled “Our Legislative Council” was
issued.

REZR%

EC-Ship Service

BXEEKRT 5V aRFBHNE R/ H39HE E44/H -

The number of post offices that accept mail items posted via the EC-Ship platform was increased from
39 to 44.

JANUARY

EERE
. FCANGERRANE

o S Taar A

L UL

B Dondgrend by Km Tahoil

EEFEBE

Lunar New Year Stamp Issue

BT [RmRFF (5F) | HHBE  YHLESFEREER  BRAABE/NIURINIA22KES S
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A set of special stamps to celebrate the “Year of the Horse” was issued. A range of associated philatelic

products, including a silk stamp sheetlet and a 22K gold-plated lace metal and silver hot foiled stamp
sheetlet were released.

[DELE] BRER
"Heartwarming Stamps" Series
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The fifth issue of the "Heartwarming Stamps" series i S ! _:,
was released, featuring new designs for the existing ol s ot
themes of “Love and Care” and “Celebrations” T ——= e =
and a new theme on “Birthday/Newborn”. ‘] i s ] if ' s
-
- ERBBEH 2013/14
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MER

New Stamp Issue
BIT—EAMU [FEZE] RENFRBE -
A set of six special stamps entitled “Chinese
Dinosaurs” was issued.

FEBRUARY

RERFTEHFHH O

Bulk Air Mail Centre
UREENFRIRERTEHHRLZR -

A new Bulk Air Mail Centre located in Tsuen
Wan commenced operation.

e-ExpressfR#§

e-Express Service

e-ExpressfREHARBEERM - ¥708 - MEAM B M@ B /i o

The e-Express service was extended to four new destinations, namely, Australia, New Zealand,
Canada and the United Kingdom.

2 B [ B 8 4 R

Closure of International Mail Centre

BEAEPHETRE  BERAMOBEEEBG+TLRERBGHLEBBBHE2014F3 HA8H & X5
MiREREE  BHEEIEBTNRENENTRBERL  c BEBEBBNETEAL ST RIE
MARCH AR -

To make way for the construction of the Shatin-to-
Central Link, the International Mail Centre and the
International Mail Centre Post Office in Hung Hom
were closed down after the close of business on
8 March 2014, and the mail processing functions
were relocated to the new Central Mail Centre in
Kowloon Bay. An official souvenir cover and a pop-
up card were issued to mark the occasi

h“”” P - }
F Y
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MARCH

[EBBHFAE]
Art@Government Buildings
BRERBRTE [BRBEFAE] E TAMEMKELBREEN [5 - 2 &fffER o
“The Letters”, a piece of artwork by a local artist, Haynie SZE Wing-yee, was installed at the General
Post Office under the “Art@Government Buildings” initiative.

MBR

New Stamp Issue

BT [RRBER] RERKRIEE -

A set of special stamps on the theme of “Weather Phenomena”
was released.

- BB BFR 2013/14
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ERBBSEBLLHEHER -
Hongkong Post continued to enhance
its product offerings to meet the
postal needs of the local community
and to cope with challenges posed to
the postal business on all fronts.

170

Over 170 years of
solid foundation
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Local Mail Business
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Hongkong Post Annual Report 2013/14
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Hongkong Post continued to enhance its product offerings to meet the postal
needs of the local community, to capitalise on the trend of online shopping,
and to cope with challenges posed to the postal business on all fronts, including
the increasing competition from alternative delivery channels.

Counter Collection

Our counter collection service, which allows customers to collect their online
purchases at post offices, is gaining popularity. The new Smart Post service
provides an economical delivery solution with track-and-trace functions for
local mail items, along with email notification of their acceptance and delivery
status as well as a choice between mail delivery and counter collection.

Direct Mail

The performance of our unaddressed direct mail service, the Hongkong Post
Circular Service (HKPCS), continued to be strong in 2013/14. With the launch
of DMDIY.hk in June 2013, we provide a one-stop, multi-channel direct
marketing web platform, to enable HKPCS customers to prepare integrated
and cost-effective direct marketing initiatives by combining the physical mail
channel with electronic communication channels.

e-Post

Providing an integrated solution embracing database management, printing
and mail delivery, the e-Post service continues to be popular with corporations
in the financial services and telecommunications sectors. Also offered through
the e-Post infrastructure, the “Make My Card” Personalised Service was further
enhanced in 2013/14 with the introduction of a new facebook application.

Local CourierPost

Local CourierPost provides customers with a fast and reliable local courier
service. With an extensive service area coverage at a uniform charge, a mail
track-and-trace function and signed receipts, as well as the option of counter
collection at any of our post offices (except mobile post offices), this service
has been well received by the general public and business customers.

=> BFR B X 15

International Mail Business
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e-Express
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Hongkong Post collaborates with its international postal business partners to
enhance service quality so as to meet the increasingly sophisticated needs of
its customers on international postings.

e-Express

The e-Express service, initially launched in 2011 for packets up to 2 kg to the
United States, has been extended to four new destinations, namely, Australia,
New Zealand, Canada and the United Kingdom. The online mail tracking
service particularly suits the needs of online traders and shoppers.

Bulk Air Mail (BAM)

With the opening of the new BAM Centre in February 2014 and the Central
Mail Centre Bulk Mail Acceptance Counter in March 2014, BAM mailers enjoy
more convenience in making postings. Both acceptance offices are equipped
with X-ray machines for security screening of mail items.

Tackling the Posting of Dangerous Articles

To further safeguard aviation safety and to prevent the postal channel from
being used for the conveyance of dangerous articles, we stepped up public
education through issuing guidance notes and notices on the posting of mail
items by air and displaying examples of dangerous articles in post offices.

BBBBEFR 2013/14
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Hongkong Post Annual Report 2013/14

With an extensive and convenient network of 128" post offices (including two
mobile post offices) throughout the territory, Hongkong Post is a very visible
postal service provider in the local community.

PostShop Products

To promote public awareness of the conservation of our postal heritage, we
launched a range of souvenirs based on the nine recently-restored vintage
posting boxes.

To broaden the market reach of our philatelic products, we extended the
PostShop network to five additional post offices that are popular with tourists,
namely, Mui Wo Post Office, Lamma Post Office, Peng Chau Post Office,
Stanley Post Office and Tai O Post Office.

Remittance Service

Hongkong Post provides two types of remittance service: postal remittance
service at 1262 post offices (excluding mobile post offices) and Western Union
electronic remittance service at 41 selected post offices. The new Direct
to Bank Account Remittance Service for Mainland China was launched in
September 2013 in collaboration with Western Union for enhanced customer
convenience.

" The number of post offices in the network was adjusted to 127 following the closure
of the International Mail Centre Post Office in March 2014.

2 The number of post offices (excluding two mobile post offices) was adjusted to 125
in March 2014.
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MultiPack
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40th Anniversary

Speedpost enjoys patronage by discerning customers who place emphasis
on reliable performance, service quality and value for money. A series of
promotional activities was launched from October 2013 to January 2014 to
celebrate the 40th Anniversary of the launch of Speedpost.

In July 2013, we promoted two online tools on the Speedpost website, i.e.
online posting form preparation and online pick-up ordering, to further
enhance customer experience.

For the seventh consecutive year, Speedpost won “The Best SME Partners
2013 - Logistics” award organised by Economic Digest. It was also named
the “Excellent Brand of Business Express Service” in the “Hong Kong Leaders’

Choice 2013" organised by Metro Finance.

JOY Pack

Following the enthusiastic market response to the fresh-look JOY Pack
introduced in 2012, a specially designed seasonal JOY Pack was launched in
September 2013 as an attractive gift packing option for the festive season.

BBBBEFR 2013/14



A
=[5 g8 OPERATIONAL REVIEW

-/ e-Services

BES

BB EEARTEHHREE  2BeR  FHREE
e-Express A EBERIE R F X iEM M@ LF & - 2013
F128  BXAARETHT A EBRT ORI M5
- BEIE44R -

LM E

25380 (www.shopthrupost.hk) A48 E TEEL - [RiEE
BERBRBETHNRLEBRMBBERIN - INEESRH
BERNETHEMENAMERIKERTNER - F
W SR FIL R P B E ARG R AT SEMA
HhiEEE

LRMBERNE - B - BERFNBEADSEH B IEHE
ZREHERNMEVE  HEAKER MEE  PEA
TORPIE AR S EB K LD BAE -

BEEBRRERERREE RN ERATRERE - BE
NBPHRBRL2NEZARRS  BFEEEBHERE
FHRE 2 2013557 » R BEIXEMREE T A RAEI8E
BMEFEE (RRES) - B AR A ZEhR] - weoh
REXFMERE  BAEBEIZERBAH2014F1 A%
2048 TTRSAZ B REMBEFEE (AA)  EFESE
(#fE) MEFEE (RE) -

Hongkong Post Annual Report 2013/14

EC-Ship

EC-Ship is an online posting platform for registered air mail, air parcels,
Speedpost, e-Express, Local CourierPost and Smart Post. Five post offices were
added to the network of post offices accepting EC-Ship postings in December
2013, bringing the total to 44.

ShopThruPost

ShopThruPost (www.shopthrupost.hk) is an online retail outlet for the broad
range of philatelic and postal products offered by Hongkong Post as well as a
diversity of merchandise from local businesses and organisations interested in
tapping the e-commerce market. New merchants joining ShopThruPost during
the year included local designers, fair trade merchants and local museum
operators.

The Gift Fulfilment Service on ShopThruPost offers a variety of merchandise
and gift hampers on festive occasions, such as Mid-Autumn Festival, Christmas,
Lunar New Year and Valentine’s Day, for customers to send their greetings to
family members, friends or business partners in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Macau.

e-Cert

Hongkong Post Certification Authority (HKPCA) is the only public recognised
certification authority in Hong Kong. There was steady growth in business
due to increasing public awareness of cyber security. In May 2013, HKPCA
launched the enhanced e-Cert (Server) with new “Wildcard” and “Multi-
domain” features. In line with industry practice, HKPCA began issuing
e-Cert (Personal), e-Cert (Organisational) and e-Cert (Encipherment) with
2048-bit RSA key length from January 2014.

5 I B R
Postal Infrastructure
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Central Mail Centre

The new Central Mail Centre in Kowloon Bay is an integrated mail sorting
centre that amalgamates the International Mail Centre in Hung Hom and the
sorting office at the General Post Office in Central. After the official handover
of the Central Mail Centre to Hongkong Post on 5 July 2013, the migration
process proceeded in phases to ensure seamless transition. The International
Mail Centre was completely relocated in March 2014 while the relocation of
the General Post Office sorting office is scheduled for completion by end 2014.

Adopting a green building design, the Central Mail Centre is purpose-built to
optimise operational efficiency. It is equipped with 12 Optical Video Integrated
System (OVIS) machines and 3 culler-facer-cancellers with optical character

recognition capability.

Diversifying the Use of Postal Infrastructure

Some 1 600 second pouch boxes located throughout the territory, the external
walls of postal facilities and liquid crystal display screens in selected post offices
are offered as a package for advertising. To provide additional convenience to
our customers, some space at the General Post Office and San Tin Post Office
has been rented out for the installation of Automated Teller Machines.

BBBBEFR 2013/14
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Hongkong Post participates actively in the international postal arena.
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Hongkong Post Annual Report 2013/14

Contributing to Multilateral Cooperation

Hongkong Post continues to give full support to the initiatives and
activities organised by the Universal Postal Union (UPU) and the Asian-
Pacific Postal Union (APPU). We attended regular meetings of the UPU,
including meetings of the Postal Operations Council and the Council of
Administration on 9 to 19 April and 28 October to 1 November 2013 as
a member of the China delegation. We also participated in the meetings
of the Asia Pacific Post Cooperative Management Board held in July 2013
and February 2014 and the 11th APPU Congress in September 2013.
In addition, we supported a pilot alarm resolution study undertaken by
the UPU Postal Security Group as part of its Mail Security Review and
received a team of specialist visitors to our Air Mail Centre in February
2014. Involvement in these multilateral fora helps us to keep abreast of
the latest developments in the global postal network, foster cooperation
with other postal administrations and advance Hongkong Post'’s interests.
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In addition, Hongkong Post participates in the Kahala Posts Group,
an alliance of 10 major postal administrations worldwide, to maintain
high performance standards for our Speedpost and Air Parcel services.
During the year, the Kahala Posts Group deliberated a broad range of
service-related issues, including preparation to meet the new e-customs
requirement set by the European Union.

BBBBEFR 2013/14
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30 FABITWEZE THE YEAR IN STAMPS
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Diversified Themes

In 2013/14, Hongkong Post issued 10 sets of special stamps, two stamp
sheetlets and one separately issued Heartwarming Stamps mini-pane on a
variety of themes.

"Year of the Horse” was ushered in with a festive stamp issue that added
to our fourth Lunar New Year stamp series. The “Chinese and Western
Wedding Customs” special stamps highlighted the integration of Chinese
and Western traditions in Hong Kong. The “World Heritage in China Series
No. 2" stamp sheetlet featured the Old Town of Lijiang. With a distinctive
Chinese cultural flavour, these stamp issues were much sought after by
philatelists locally as well as those in Mainland China and Macau.

Our stamps also reveal different facets of life in Hong Kong. The
"Revitalisation of Historic Buildings in Hong Kong” stamps introduced
six local historic buildings which have been given a new lease of life
through innovative conservation and re-use solutions. The “Hong Kong
Buses” stamps, which depicted bus models dating back to the early
post-war period, evoked fond memories of this popular mode of public
transport. Stamps on the theme of “Our Legislative Council” showed the
new Legislative Council Complex alongside features of the old Legislative
Council Building. The “Inclusive Arts” stamps fostered social integration
in the community by promoting the artworks of talented local disabled
artists.

Following the revision of the principal postage rates which took effect on
1 October 2013, two stamps bearing “Local Mail Postage” and “Air Mail
Postage” indications respectively were issued to facilitate the public in
posting mail items.

BRBHBTHBRZUENERZ - RTHEARE -

Hong Kong stamps are well known for their diversity in themes and innovative designs.
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Commemorate Hongkong Post's Participation

in the Australia 2013 World Stamp Expo
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Chinese and Western
Wedding Customs
23.7.2013
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World Heritage in China Series No. 2:
The Old Town of Lijiang

22.8.2013

Hong Kong Buses
24.9.2013
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Special Printing Effects

A variety of special printing effects were employed to enhance the design of
stamps issued during the year, including the 22K gold-plated lace metal and silver
hot foiled “Gold and Silver Stamp Sheetlet on Lunar New Year Animals — Snake/
Horse”, hot foil stamping on the “Kai Tak Cruise Terminal” stamp sheetlet, printing
in photochromic ink for the “Innovation and Technology” stamps, the glow-in-
the-dark effect for the “Chinese Dinosaurs” stamps, and a lenticular effect for the
“Hong Kong Buses” and the “Weather Phenomena” stamp sheetlets.

Stamps as Customised Gifts

Hongkong Post offers a customised souvenir service for corporations and
individuals, making use of the broad variety of stamps we issue throughout
the year. In addition to the popular themes of “Love and Care” and
“Celebrations”, a new theme of “Birthday/Newborn” Heartwarming
Stamps was introduced. In 2013/14, we also developed new designs of
stamp panes under our Heartwarming Stamps Customised Service.

Promoting Philately

To cultivate interest in stamps and stamp collecting, especially among
young people, Hongkong Post organised a wide range of educational and
promotional activities, such as philatelic workshops, exhibitions, seminars and
visits to post offices, in collaboration with local schools. In addition, we co-
organised philately-related functions with interested organisations, e.g. the
13th Inter-School Stamp Exhibits Competition and Exhibition co-organised
with the Education Bureau in 2014 to promote philately among students.
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We seek continuous
improvement in our
products and services
in order to better serve
our customers.
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We seek continuous improvement in our products and services in order to better serve

our customers.
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Local Mail Business
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Mechanised Letter Sorting System

We will expand the capability of our Mechanised Letter Sorting System to
sort letters bearing Chinese addresses. Procurement of the new system will
be arranged in 2014/15.

Closer Partnership with Customers

We will further improve operational efficiency while providing price
incentives to our customers by pursuing work-sharing solutions, such as
encouraging mailers to make bulk postings at the Central Mail Centre and
the BAM Centre instead of post office counters, and promoting advance
booking of mail acceptance slots for bulk postings to facilitate our resource
planning.

E-commerce

To meet the delivery needs arising from e-commerce, we will continue to
develop service solutions in collaboration with other postal operators, e.g.
extending the e-Express service to additional destinations, exploring new
tracked service options with interested partners and offering customised

counter collection service for online merchants.
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Postal Infrastructure
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Integrated Postal Services System

The Integrated Postal Services System will be implemented in phases
starting from August 2014 to enable all post office counters to provide
a full range of postal services. The System will also integrate counter
transactions with back-office operations, thus streamlining operational
procedures and facilitating resource planning and deployment.

Reprovisioning of the General Post Office

The General Post Office Building at Central houses the Hongkong
Post Headquarters and various operational units, e.g. the General Post
Office Counters and PO Box Section, the General Post Office Delivery
Office and the Hong Kong Speedpost Operation Centre. To facilitate
the development of the New Central Harbourfront, we plan to relocate
our Headquarters to a site in Kowloon whereas the remaining district-
based functions will be reprovisioned within Central in order to maintain
continuity in service provision.
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Serving the
community with heart
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Hongkong Post’s dedicated
pursuit of service excellence
was widely recognised in
the community.




Service A

BRBR-—AAEUERTNBHERBETE

Hongkong Post is a customer-oriented service provider.
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Customer Feedback

In 2013/14, we received 2 611 commendations from members of the
public. 250 complaints were received, representing a decrease of 17.8%
over 2012/13.

Customer Satisfaction Survey

In 2013/14, the overall customer satisfaction level as reflected in the regular
customer satisfaction survey reached 98.7%. Customer satisfaction for
different service areas was maintained at a high level: 96.8% for counter
service, 98.6% for delivery service and 95.6% for hotline service.

Customer Liaison Groups

Hongkong Post solicits customer feedback through the Customer
Liaison Groups and the Philately Liaison Group, whose members include
representatives from District Councils, account customers, philatelists and
other members of the public. 10 meetings were held in 2013/14 to discuss
a range of product and service issues.

A new Business Customer Liaison Group, chaired by the Postmaster General
and comprising representatives from major local chambers of commerce
and SME associations as members, was set up in 2014 to enhance business
customers’ understanding of Hongkong Post’s products and services,
improve our understanding of customers’ needs, and gauge customer
feedback on our service performance and quality. The Group held its first
meeting in February 2014.
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PostalPlus for SME

The PostalPlus for SME and the e-Club, membership clubs to introduce
Hongkong Post’s broad range of services to local SMEs and online
merchants respectively, were amalgamated on 1 January 2014 to streamline
the provision of support to club members that now total close to 44 000.

Members of PostalPlus for SME enjoy various exclusive privileges and special
offers. They also receive regular updates on postal services and solutions,
practical business tips and relevant market intelligence to help them grow
their business.

Public Recognition

Call Centre

Hongkong Post’s Mail Tracing Office was named the “Best EMS Call Centre
2013" (medium group) by the Express Mail Service (EMS) Cooperative
of the UPU. Launched in 2006, this annual award is adjudicated by the
member postal administrations of the EMS Cooperative to give recognition
to postal administrations which provide outstanding customer service
during the year.

Customer Service

Hongkong Post's Kwai Chung Delivery Office received the Bronze Award for
Team Award (Field and Special Service) in the Customer Service Excellence
Award 2013 organised by the Hong Kong Association for Customer Service
Excellence.

Corporate Excellence

Hongkong Post’s dedicated pursuit of service excellence was widely
recognised in the community. Hongkong Post received the Bronze Award
for Best Public Image in the Civil Service Outstanding Service Award
Scheme 2013 organised by the Civil Service Bureau. We came first in
the Hong Kong Government Service Excellence Index 2013 collated by
the Efficiency Unit, ranking top for overall user satisfaction among 10
major government departments. Hongkong Post also came top in the
Government Departments and Related Organisations Category of Next
Magazine's Top Service Awards 2013.

In the Junzi Corporation Survey 2013 organised by Hang Seng Management
College, Hongkong Post gained recognition as a “Junzi Corporation”,
which focused on the business ethics of corporations according to
Confucian virtues.

In addition, Hongkong Post was recognised as a “Consumer Caring
Company” under the Consumer Caring Scheme organised by GS1 Hong
Kong, reflecting our commitment to consumer care.

BBBBEFR 2013/14
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Hongkong Post is committed to nurturing a highly motivated and professional workforce.
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Training and Development

Hongkong Post’s stated strategy of developing “World Class People”
continues to underpin our recruitment and training programmes. It is
our objective to develop a professional team that possesses the requisite
competencies to respond to an evolving service environment swiftly and
to achieve consistently high levels of performance. The number of training
days offered to staff in 2013/14 increased to 37 862 days, compared to
30 390 days in the previous financial year.

We continue to develop the management skills of our managerial staff
to support their personal professional development and the department’s
sustainable growth. In July 2013, an international postal services training
programme was organised for junior managers to enrich their knowledge of
cross-border postal operations. The programme included a study visit to the
State Post Bureau and China Post in Beijing for benchmarking experience.
Managerial officers are also offered sponsorship for postgraduate
studies, such as the Master of Public Administration Programme and
the Executive Master of Business Administration Programme, at local
universities. In addition, seminars and workshops are organised regularly
for sharing experience and best practices in relevant fields such as contract
management, financial management and personal data protection.
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To maintain a high level of customer satisfaction, we organise regular
training courses for our frontline staff. Supervisory skills workshops prepare
Postal Officers and Postmen for taking up higher responsibilities. We also
organise competence development programmes to empower our frontline
staff and supervisors to meet the challenges in the workplace.

We strive to excel through promoting self-learning among staff members.
Various e-learning programmes, such as English and Putonghua courses for
counter and delivery staff, customer service skills training for counter staff,
etc., are available on the Hongkong Post Intranet to enable all ranks of staff
to learn at a time and place convenient to them.

Occupational Safety and Health

In accordance with the Department’s occupational safety and health
strategy, we implemented the Safety Management System to ensure that
our workforce enjoys a safe and healthy work environment. Frontline
staff and managerial grade officers are also provided with training on
occupational safety and health, focusing on preventive measures against
injury at work.
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Hongkong Post is committed to doing business in a socially responsible manner.
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Barrier-free Access

Under the barrier-free access programme launched in 2011, we aim to
enhance public accessibility to our postal services. Facilities such as
accessible passages and service counters, induction loops, tactile guide
paths and visual fire alarms were installed at 103 of our 125 post offices as
at 31 March 2014. The installation programme covering all our post offices
was completed in June 2014.

Preparing Young People for the Workplace

Hongkong Post participates in a number of programmes to help students to
prepare for the transition from schools or universities to the workplace. In
the summer of 2013, 16 students took part in the Post-Secondary Student
Summer Internship Programme. They gained useful work experience in
human resource management, accounting, marketing and information
system development. We also hosted a Job Shadow Day for 15 Form 5
students in March 2014 under the Job Shadowing Programme organised by
Junior Achievement Hong Kong.

Hongkong Post continues to take part in the Social Welfare Department’s
Sunnyway Programme, providing job attachment training opportunities to
young people with disabilities.
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PostCare Club

Our PostCare Club, comprising staff of Hongkong Post and their family
members, promotes care and concern for the less privileged in the
community. Activities organised during the year included:

o weekly free tutorial classes for children at Caritas Centre and Hong
Kong Red Cross John F. Kennedy Centre;

e visit to Fung Wong Fung Ting Home for the Elderly in Sheung Shui in
July 2013;

e visit to Tung Sin Tan Home for the Aged in Sai Kung to celebrate the
Mid-Autumn Festival; and

e Christmas visit to new-arrival families.

“Love to Share” Toys Collection Programme

In support of the “Hong Kong: Our Home" Campaign, Hongkong Post
jointly organised a Toys Collection Programme, “Love to Share”, with YMCA
of Hong Kong. 14 designated post offices received toy donations from the
public in November and December 2013. The response was overwhelming.
Over 150 000 toys were collected and distributed to children in need
through the YMCA Toy Bank.

Other Charitable Activities

As a socially responsible organisation, Hongkong Post stays closely involved in
the community it serves. In 2013/14, we participated in a variety of charitable
activities organised by The Community Chest of Hong Kong, including the
“Corporate and Employee Contribution Programme”, “New Territories Walk
for Millions”, “Green Day”, “Love Teeth Day” and “Skip Lunch Day”. We
also supported other local charitable organisations such as the Children’s
Heart Foundation, the Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation and the Agency
for Volunteer Service by publicising their activities to our workforce.

BBBBEFR 2013/14
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Our Environment

Hongkong Post is committed to carrying out all its operations in an
environmentally responsible manner. In 2013/14, we achieved the
government-wide saving target of 5% in our overall electricity consumption
compared to the 2007/08 consumption level. Selected post office premises
participated in the Energy-cum-Carbon Audit Programme organised by the
Environmental Protection Department, and the Air Mail Centre took part in
the Carbon Reduction Programmes of the Hong Kong International Airport.
Our new Central Mail Centre, incorporating various eco-friendly and energy-
efficient installations, reflects a green building design and helps foster a
culture of environmental conservation among our staff.

Our postal vehicle fleet includes electric vehicles, environmentally-friendly
vehicles as well as trucks which comply with the Euro V emission standards. In
some rural areas, bicycles rather than automobiles are used for mail delivery.

Our stamps are printed on Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) Mix paper. We
also use environmentally-friendly paper to print our other philatelic products,
e.g. first day covers and souvenir covers. As at end March 2014, more
than 16 000 local standing order customers and 1 700 overseas mail order
customers had registered to make stamp purchases via Stamp OnNet, our
online ordering platform. Over 24 000 local standing order customers have
chosen to receive philatelic newsletters and stamp order collection letters by

email, thus helping us to further reduce paper consumption.
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In 2013/14, Hongkong Post participated in a number of campaigns organised
to protect the environment, including “Green Day” organised by The
Community Chest of Hong Kong, “Hong Kong No Air-Con Night” by Green
Sense, “Earth Hour 2014 by World Wide Fund for Nature and “Tree Planting
Challenge 2013" by Friends of the Earth (HK). We also encouraged our staff
to support various environmental protection initiatives, such as the “Use Less,
Waste Less in My Hands” campaign, the mobile collection service for waste
electrical and electronic equipment, Biz-Green Dress Day for managerial staff
and sustainability-conscious food consumption in official entertainment.
Environmental protection issues are regularly covered in management and
staff briefings as well as staff newsletters to promote green awareness in our
workforce.
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AR 7% % Performance Pledge

2013/14
B

2013/14
3]

Target Performance

A ith % B R E 44 Local and International Mail

2014/15

B
Target

iz 7% %% Performance Pledge

2013/14
BE

2013/14
=~HE

Target Performance

A i % B R E 44 Local and International Mail

5.

N 22 S A4 1 A {1 T 44 R TR A A
Deliver inward airmail items within 2 working days after arrival in Hong Kong

99.0%

100%

2014/15

B
Target

99.0%

i RAOBRERETH/BEBEMEIERNRESS  WERNABRETEINE
U A - Bt ith [ B = 18 TER AR

Deliver local and inward parcels within 2 working days after day of posting or
arrival, to Hong Kong, Kowloon and major commercial and industrial areas in
the New Territories, and within 3 working days to other areas

99.5%

99.7%

99.5%

SHREHEREEET —(E TR iE

1. $iﬂ%¢x%ﬂf R TR T —E TERIRE RS A _ . 99.0% 99.8%  99.0%
Deliver locally posted letters to local addressees by the following working day
BB ] FA — NS

2. fﬁ,m:%&il%’tﬁ’\\ffI1’E3€W/JE}§HM¢/\ N _ 99 5% 100% 99 5%
Deliver Bulk Economy letters to addressees within 3 working days

3. %ﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁk@@ﬂ%ﬁ&%ﬁ@iﬁiﬁéwI.{”E?EW)E}%'H&T&H\ . 99.5% 100% 99.5%
Deliver Hongkong Post Circular Service items within 4 working days

4, HOEBHBEWNABBREANRS - BIAR LT RERXE R TEEERIOHM
ZERE - BEBETESMIM
Despatch outward airmail items, posted before the advertised latest time for
posting, to the designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights
FErm g HY o Txé;. Hal T —EI#EX . . 99.0% 99.5% 99.0%
Non-peak periods Within the same day or the following working day
= & Hi HETERA
o 90.0% 99.7%  90.0%

Peak periods' Within 5 working days

Hongkong Post Annual Report 2013/14

HAZHBRMNEEEFHEATIRE - BRI IAT AR BIEXEEEEEMEOM
ZNE BEABFTESHIA

Despatch outward air parcels, posted before the advertised latest time for
posting, to the designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights

FEDIEE ME TERA
Non-peak periods’ Within 2 working days
= & B HETIERA
Peak periods' Within 5 working days

99.0%

90.0%

99.8%

100%

99.0%

90.0%

HOXSRFEHI MNP EEFEATIRE - AR T RREEXE R TS
fmmZELR - BERTAEMINL

Despatch outward bulk air mail items, posted before the advertised latest time
for posting, to the designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights

=g =—ETHERA
Non-peak periods! Within 3 working days
= & BRi HEIERA
Peak periods' Within 7 working days

90.0%

90.0%

100%

100%

90.0%

90.0%
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AR 7% % Performance Pledge

2013/14

B
Target

2013/14
ES)
Performance

HIREIE K A i B B3R IE Speedpost and Local CourierPost

9.

FrREIR P PR 1R AR 75 & KL 5 = P 91 AR IR R R 4
Provide pick-up service for Speedpost items within the period as specified in the
Service Information Sheet

99.5%

100%

2014/15

B
Target

99.5%

10.

H AR REE AT B IR ATIR S -
FHEEMIM

Deliver outward Speedpost items accepted before the specified latest times for
posting to air carriers on the same day, subject to availability of flights

IRRTEAREMZE=QF - BAR

99.5%

99.7%

99.5%

11.

AL REBRBA MR EFRESAHEE - 7R FE— @ TERAIRER A
Deliver inward Speedpost items on the same working day for items arriving
before 6:00am

99.5%

99.9%

99.5%

12.

N3 TP ORI B 4 R AR 75 £ B PR D AR AR
Deliver Local CourierPost items according to the standards specified in the
Service Leaflet

99.5%

100%

99.5%

HE{Z BR# Retail Business

13.

FEEICR A Z 109 88 NERMIRY

Serve customers within 10 minutes during non-peak hours

98.0%

99.2%

98.0%

14.

EICER/S g8 BRI 250 BARERHRE

Serve customers within 25 minutes during peak hours or periods'

98.0%

100%

98.0%

15.

B RARLBEEZEEA THEMEDERNTK

Reset private franking machines at counters within 15 minutes

98.0%

100%

98.0%

16.

BEOREFBERATBREAIEME TEMSDEATTHK
Deliver products under the Local Standing Order Service at counters within 15
minutes

98.0%

100%

98.0%

Hongkong Post Annual Report 2013/14
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AR 7 %55 Performance Pledge 201314 2013/14 RRIOERE
B = 53] B
Target Performance [EMEI(s[s
SHKBBEEMR Philately & PostShop Products
17 BEENEFNBEETEARIERE BT BREIENER
Make products available for collection under the Local Standing Order Service 100% 100% 100%
on the first day of issue of the related special stamps
18. RUBGINBRERZF R AETERANST HI B R
Despatch overseas orders within 5 working days from date of receiving the 100% 100% 100%
order
19. HWBIRFLEARFAEIERARZRAZEBIRSHFE
Open new philatelic accounts within 6 working days from date of receiving the 100% 100% 100%
application
20 PAUKCEI AN 1t T 8 60 4 IR 68 o R R 72 < M AR R AR P AT 48 I W4 A
Deliver local orders for PostShop products within 6 working days from date of 99.0% 100% 99.0%
receiving the order
EF&FEIRI Certification Authority
21, ETHEEIERARZEEEABREFRERBHBRE -
Process applications for Hongkong Post e-Cert within the working days stipulated
below:
cBEFEE(MEA) - =X
e-Cert (Personal) - 3 days
cBEFEE(ME) - +X
e-Cert (Organisational) - 10 days 99.0% 99.9% 99.0%
s BEFREE(RE) - TX e e e
e-Cert (Encipherment) - 10 days
s BFEE(ARE) - +X
e-Cert (Server) - 10 days
BRRE Hotlines
REZEBAN12VANERERRE:
22. REB=ZZBIMN12VANEERRE 90.0% 98.1% 90.0%

Answer calls to Hongkong Post Hotlines within 3 rings, i.e. within 12 seconds
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AR 7% # % Performance Pledge

2013/14 2013/14 RPANEAR

BE 530 B
Target Performance [EEEIfeISH

HIPEEBBRIE AR Application for Postal Services

23, ERETERARZ TIIREHRE

Process applications for the following services within 5 working days:

o WIRIEFE

Post Office Boxes
o FRAFLAEE ZENH

Use of Private Franking Machine
s AR ARERFTHMHIESIRS

Opening of Deposit Accounts for Posting of Mail in Bulk

o Ei{EEIR AR TS
Redirection Service

FEETERANZ THIRSEH RS

100% 100% 100%

Process applications for the following services within 4 working days:

o (12 [0 & AR 75
Freepost

* BMEDERH
Business Reply Service

o BIFR 7 3 3 AR S

International Business Reply Service

24, —ETHERABZEFABEBENBSTRENEH

Process applications for Hongkong Post Circular Service by the following 100% 100% 100%

working day

25, —EATERABZEFBERBORF

99.0% 100% 99.0%

Process applications for Permit Mailing Service by the following working day

i JESEH: 2013/14FE—AENA - LAR2014/15FE=AZE+A -

ii. =IEH2013/14FENAZT =R - WR201415FE+—AZ=
Ao

i. SERNREEBREITER  FHULICAFNERHNRERF
BREGFDES (BEE—-AUEMA - LA+ AN KE—E
EH) - EBBRAZERMESERRAOFS -
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Notes:

Non-peak period: January to August for 2013/14 and March to October for 2014/15.
Peak period: September to December for 2013/14 and November to February for 2014/15.
Peak periods include the first day of issue of philatelic products, seasonal peak periods
such as Christmas, Lunar New Year and the peak collection periods for government bills
(i.e. the whole month of January and the last week of April, July and October). Details of
peak hours for individual post offices are displayed in the public halls of the post office
concerned.
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BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund

(a) BEEEL®EK

(b) WA(ABEETTA)

(c) XH(ABEETA)

(d) BEBIECARSETA)

(e) BHE(LABBMET)

(f) BEEERE(ABSBT)
(9) £EN(BAS/NRERHOEMT)
(h) BRIEREAGETT)

(i) BEA#Z

Rate of return on Fixed Assets
Revenue (HK$ million)
Expenditure (HK$ million)

Loss from operations (HK$ million)
Traffic (Million items)

Capital Investment (HK$ million)
Productivity (item per man-hour)
Unit handling cost (HK$)

Total number of staff

2014
®5

Performance

-0.5%
5,249

5,252

1.234
147
136

1.87

7,172

2013
&5

Performance
-3.9%

5,176

5,290

114

1,362

209

141

1.70

7,053
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BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund
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Audit Commission

The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report

To the Legislative Council

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of
the Post Office Trading Fund set out on pages 57 to 85, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund’s
Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund is responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430)
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as the General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section
7(5) of the Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission
auditing standards. Those standards require that | comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

BBBBEFR 2013/14
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the General Manager,
Post Office Trading Fund, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Post Office Trading Fund as at 31 March 2014,
and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the manner provided
in section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance.

\,\{/)

LAU Sun-wo

Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

26 September 2014

Audit Commission
26th Floor
Immigration Tower

7 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

2E MR * STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

E(Z2014F3H31H 1% /Z for the year ended 31 March 2014
(LB M F Tl 217~ Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund

BxE
EERAS

EEER
HAA

ERAERAERT
HEMEH

FEEF
HAth 2 Es

FEAZENRS

B & % & b R %

Turnover

Operating costs

Loss from operations
Other income

Profit before notional profits tax
Notional profits tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Rate of return on fixed assets

Bt &
Note AUlE

3 5,249,224 5,175,719
4 (5,251,850) (5,289,737)
(2,626) (114,018)

5 139,508 126,368
136,882 12,350

6 (19,638) (1,909)
117,244 10,441

117,244 10,441

7 -0.5% -3.9%

F61ESEMMERANBFHRRA—D

The notes on pages 61 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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58 B #HHKkRE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 288X STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 59
201443 H31H as at 31 March 2014 # 2201443 H31H 14 Z for the year ended 31 March 2014
(LB BT Tz Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB BT Tz Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund

Note
EMEeR 4,346,528 4,336,087

Balance at beginning of year

FEREEE Non-current assets
W% - R Property, plant and equipment 8 2,624,869 2,639,155
WR AR Intangible assets 9 36,016 35,822 FERZENR Total comprehensive income for the year 117,244 10,441
BERRNES Held-to-maturity securities 10 252,575 312,056
INEESTER Placement with the Exchange Fund 11 1,377,367 1,311,778 FREMEE Dividend paid during the year (41,712) -
EEMES Structured notes 12 - 388,148
4,290,827 4,686,959 RN Balance at end of year 4,422,060 4,346,528
REDRE Current assets
e Stocks 5,034 3,434
FEUIRAR ~ %2 & RIANFIA Debtors, deposits and prepayments 208,436 260,869
JE T BRE A TIRFR Amounts due from related parties 21 23,366 20,463
JEE Y HINEE B 2 7 3R B Interest receivable from placement with the Exchange Fund 12,226 16,173
FEHMHE S Held-to-maturity securities 10 208,588 200,289
RITER Bank deposits 1,834,368 1,488,257
B& RIRITHER Cash and bank balances 149,557 160,382
2,441,575 2,149,867
REBRAR Current liabilities
Be RFEYGRIE Deposits and receipts in advance (263,363) (266,873)
FETIR X K B AT & A Creditors and accruals (1,042,931) (1,241,247)
FEA R A IR Amounts due to related parties 21 (462,647) (447,189)
FERT 2 ZFIBR Notional profits tax payable (13,502) (17,268)
(1,782,443) (1,972,577)
nEDRERE Net current assets 659,132 177,290
RRERERDAR Total assets less current liabilities 4,949,959 4,864,249
FERENAR Non-current liabilities
RIER R Deferred tax 14 (26,821) (20,686)
& BB TR Provision for employee benefits 15 (501,078) (497,035)
(527,899) (517,721)
HERE NET ASSETS 4,422,060 4,346,528
BAER % CAPITAL AND RESERVES
EERGEN Trading fund capital 16 2,495,059 2,495,059
R Development reserve 17 243,664 243,664
REEF Retained earnings 18 1,683,337 1,566,093
BERE Proposed dividend 19 = 41,712
4,422,060 4,346,528
Pnt
=
TER®NZL Mrs. Jessie Ting
BB e B S BLIE General Manager,
201459 H26H Post Office Trading Fund
26 September 2014
E61E85HEMMFARMBHREN—F 5 - The notes on pages 61 to 85 form part of these financial statements. E61E8SHEMMFARMBHREN—FH - The notes on pages 61 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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B &R EFK STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Rt ¥ &M iE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 61

# 2201443 H31H 14 for the year ended 31 March 2014
(LB M F Tz 217~ Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(BR¥F5IaERASN - SRELBEE T TSI o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund

. 1. —REHR General
Notem Ut RIMLERE1995F7 B19BRIE (EEEEK  The Post Office Trading Fund (POTF) was established on 1 August 1995
EEEEMEeRE Cash flows from operating activities ) (84305 )%3 ~ 4R6FABRZE - £1995  under the Legislative Council Resolution passed on 19 July 1995 pursuant

EEEE Loss from operations (2.626) (114.018) FRAIBKUBHELERS (EEAS) - to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430).

MR - REREMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment LG L U2 LEESHNTIZRBRRBE—MRIBEKLMAER  The principal activities of the POTF are provision of general postal and

Y RER S Amortisation of intangible assets %714 olse %, 200051 A AR A ZEMAER - I2EE  ancillary services, and electronic authentication services after the POTF

HE /ERYR - RBREMBR - Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 452 o FRBIRTS - H2007F4 R EFREMBEH  became a Recognised Certification Authority in January 2000. With

@aEﬂélﬁ%%EIEER Uqrealised foreign exchange loss on financial HEESEERAMEREE effect from April 2007, electronic authentication services are provided

Eﬂf |nstrurT1ents B | 2,057 491 through a contractor under the supervision of the POTF.

B Bt RIBEIE N Increase in provision for employee benefits 11,225 30,836

FERIIR R Rz e Rl /73810 (Decrease) / Increase in creditors and deposits (155,539) 185,003 ). TEeHEE Significant accounting policies

FEAT BRI A TR FIE AN Increase in amounts due to related parties 5,431 137,273 )

IR R RIFE R Decrease in debtors and stocks 24,062 112,017 (a) ﬁéz%’a;u%i e s () ST o el et

(Increase) / Decrease in amounts due from related AU BBREREEREB ARG RAK The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

BB A HIE 2k () / S parties (2,903) 1,281 FBHAEANESVB®RSER (LARL accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and all

O BEFER Notional profits tax paid (17.269) _ W EPEBEEESAMASRMNMAE applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSS),
REBEIEENRLSHE Net cash from operating activities 25,092 516,483 BERNENTEMBREEL BESSR a collective term which includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
NREENRSRE Cash flows from investing activities HRNZE)RE - 2EESRANITIES Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations

RABHRBBIMEA R IRITER Increase in bank deposits with original maturity SHERERBEMT o issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

0 over three months (270,000) (5,523) (HKICPA). A summary of the significant accounting policies

BARZHMHES Purchase of held-to-maturity securities (151,127) - adopted by the POTF is set out below.

BOFEHRNES Redemption of held-to-maturity securities 200,000 216,460

B 5 2 R e o S e 393,442 38,785 (b) WEBHRERNER (b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

SNE RS A Increase in placement with the Exchange Fund (65,589) (69,564) BRELNTEHBRMARZAEMNESHT The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial

BB B8 R purelizse of sremary, sl e e HENRAFEINRIN R B AR E statements is historical cost except that trading finandial

WA and intangible assets (134,950) (218,090) ERARERIVETE o instruments are stated at their fair values as explained in the
Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and accounting policies set out below.

:i;@‘é EmREH Inti(::;fg::if/ed 110’1:; 122;2; & %ﬁé\ 5 Eﬂ%iﬁ%%’%ﬂ‘l E’\J?ﬁﬁ‘%ﬁfﬁ? The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
REREHAHBR&BHE Net cash from investing activities 81,906 84,648 %Eﬂ%{/ﬁﬁf”%; ﬁi&{gii& ) %%%J requires. TEMECEMET makt.e jL.Jdgement‘s,‘ estimates. and
MR E RS RE Cash flows from financing activities & 1\5 it k& ﬁfﬁ‘ TEe Eﬁ‘EﬁlﬁE’\JEH@; assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported

. Dividend paid @1,712) ) EX &é% Eﬁi‘ﬁ f& A Ug ?\jﬁ% X E’\li %ﬁ TJ_A’ amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
g Net cash used in financing activities @1,712) - B o ZEMET R EI’MER?&L ) 1’3%% (e and associated assumptions are based on historical experience

_ . . . BREMEEBABATHERAAENEE and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
ReRERBESIAMBE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 65,286 601,131 . s \ . . . .
_ ) . il R o SR A H bR K BIR AT 2 the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
FANRSRERAS Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1.601,639 1,000,508 Z . RlgRAESEHAFARBRERHESR judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
FRHEERERNRE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 20 1,666,925 1,601,639

FO1ESSAMMER/AMBHRERN—E7 -

Hongkong Post Annual Report 2013/14

The notes on pages 61 to 85 form part of these financial statements.

MEERAGBEMIREENER - AetER
KEEREERMATRE -

not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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(BRAFBIEEBRS) - 2 BB T ISR ©

Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of the POTF's accounting policies. There are also no
key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the POTF on 1
August 1995 were measured initially at deemed cost equal to
the value contained in the Resolution of the Legislative Council
for the setting up of the POTF. Property, plant and equipment
acquired since 1 August 1995 are capitalised at the actual cost of
acquisition or installation.

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
(note 2(e)):

— land classified as held under a finance lease and buildings held
for own use situated thereon;

— other buildings held for own use appropriated to the POTF. The
land is regarded as a non-depreciating asset; and

— plant and equipment, including furniture and fittings, plant and
machinery, motor vehicles and computer systems.

(BRAFBIREBES) 2 BB BT ISR ©

Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Land classified as held under over the unexpired term of lease
a finance lease

— Buildings situated on
leasehold land

over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated

useful lives
— Other buildings 20 to 40 years
— Furniture and fittings 5 years

— Plant and machinery 7 to 15 years

— Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

— Computer systems 5 years

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income on the date of disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and
capitalised development costs of computer software programs.
Expenditure on development of computer software programs is
capitalised if the programs are technically feasible and the POTF
has sufficient resources and intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes direct labour and cost of
materials. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2(e)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to identify any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
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(BR ¥ 5IaERRSN - S BELBIE T TS o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund
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0]

(ii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Financial assets and financial liabilities

Initial recognition

The POTF classifies its financial assets and financial
liabilities into different categories at inception, depending
on the purpose for which the assets were acquired or the
liabilities were incurred. The categories are: trading financial
instruments, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity securities
and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially
at fair value, which normally equals to the transaction prices
plus, for loans and receivables, held-to-maturity securities
and other financial liabilities, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets
or issue of the financial liabilities. Transaction costs on trading
financial instruments are expensed immediately.

The POTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on
the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are accounted for at settlement date.

Categorisation

Trading financial instruments

The POTF does not acquire financial instruments for the
purpose of trading. However, derivative financial instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are categorised
as “trading” under HKAS 39, “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”.

Embedded derivatives that are separated from the host
contracts (note 2(f)iv)) are also categorised as “trading”
under HKAS 39.

Trading financial instruments are carried at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

(BR¥F5IaERASN - SRELBEE T TSI o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(ii) Categorisation (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and which the POTF has no intention of trading.
This category includes debtors, amounts due from related
parties, interest receivable, placement with the Exchange
Fund, structured notes, structured deposits, bank deposits
and cash and bank balances.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (note

2(f)(v).

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the POTF estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees received or paid between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
which the POTF has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity, other than those that meet the definition of loans
and receivables.

Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less impairment losses, if any
(note 2(f)(v)).
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(BR ¥ 5IaERRSN - S BELBIE T TS o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(ii) Categorisation (continued)
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

(iii) Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
where the financial asset together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or when
it expires.

(iv) Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both the derivative and
a host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows
of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-
alone derivative.

An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract
and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to those of the host contract; and (b) the
hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. Where the embedded derivative is
separated, the host contract is accounted for according to its
category (note 2(f)(ii)).

(BR¥F5IaERASN - SRELBEE T TSI o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets
The carrying amounts of loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate. If in a subsequent
period the amount of such impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

Stocks

Stocks consist of postage stamps and aerogrammes held in the
stamp vaults at the Headquarters. They are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances,
and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity when placed or acquired.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the POTF has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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(BR ¥ 5IaERRSN - S BELBIE T TS o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Employee benefits

The employees of the POTF comprise civil servants and contract
staff. Salaries, staff gratuities, and annual leave entitlements are
accrued and recognised as expenditure in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by the staff. For civil servants, staff
on-costs, including pensions and housing benefits provided to the
staff by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the Government), are charged as expenditure in the year
in which the associated services are rendered.

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension
liabilities are discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-cost
charged by the Government. For other staff, contributions to
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income as incurred.

Notional profits tax

(i) The POTF has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue
Ordinance (Cap.112). However, the Government requires the
POTF to pay to the General Revenue an amount in lieu of
profits tax (i.e. notional profits tax) calculated on the basis
of the provisions of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. Notional
profits tax expense for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

(i) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

(BR¥F5IaERASN - SRELBEE T TSI o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Notional profits tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assets can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such deduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

(I) Revenue recognition

Revenue from postal services is recognised as the services are
provided. Allowance for a measured share of stamp income
for the amount of revenue from postage stamps sold in
respect of which postal service has not yet been provided is
made at the end of the reporting period.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Realised gains or losses on financial instruments are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when
the financial instruments are derecognised. Changes in fair
value of trading financial instruments are recognised as
revaluation gains or losses in the statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.
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(BRAFBIEEBRS) - 2 BB T ISR ©

Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Foreign currency translation

(n)

(o)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars using the spot exchange rates at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong
Kong dollars using the closing exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period. All foreign currency translation differences are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Related parties

The POTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government
established under the Trading Funds Ordinance. During the year,
the POTF has entered into transactions with various related parties,
including government bureaux and departments, trading funds and
financially autonomous bodies controlled or significantly influenced
by the Government, in the ordinary course of its business.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period. Of these, the following is relevant to the
POTF's financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements —
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are
met from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss.
There is no impact on the POTF’s financial statements as the POTF
does not have items of other comprehensive income.

The amendments also introduce a new terminology for the
“Statement of Comprehensive Income” to be renamed as the
“Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income”.
The use of this new terminology is not mandatory. The POTF
has chosen to retain the title of “Statement of Comprehensive
Income”.

The POTF has not applied any new HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period (note 24).

(BRAFBIREBES) 2 BB BT ISR ©
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Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund

3. X Turnover
— R EIEIRTE General mail services 5,092,390 4,979,821
HIRWA Miscellaneous revenue 156,834 195,898
5,249,224 5,175,719
4. EEHK Operating costs
BITAA Staff costs 2,481,452 2,392,657
—REBHFIEIERY General mail operating expenses 2,370,665 2,529,810
HehEES Rental and management charges 209,935 176,329
e R EH Depreciation and amortisation 160,202 163,543
FRITRER Central administration overheads 16,596 11,846
misiEEE A Marketing expenses 10,931 13,770
H:EA Audit fees 2,069 1,782
5,251,850 5,289,737
5. HaulgA Other income

2013

RE AT IELAATFETIRA
SREENFIEKRA
R EHMRES
SNEES TR
EBIEES
RITER
RITREBR R EAM

MESRTAREBEEROFER RS M S

Interest income from financial assets not

at fair value

Held-to-maturity securities 21,397 24,356
Placement with the Exchange Fund 61,643 68,441
Structured notes 178 11,517
Bank deposits 17,460 12,175
Bank balances and others 230 373
100,908 116,862

Net realised and revaluation gains on

derivative financial instruments and
structured notes 38,600 9,506
139,508 126,368
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(BRAFBIEEBRS) - 2 BB T ISR ©

Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund

(a) The notional profits tax charged to the statement of comprehensive

2013

6. BRAE Notional profits tax
(a) R2EWRERATRHBRFEH
me : income is arrived at as follows:
EHIM™m Current tax

AEFEARNSHAEE

LEEBEEIR/ GBR)
R IEIR R

ERMEEEMNELRED
ERFER

Provision for notional profits tax for

the year 13,502 2,779
Under-provision / (Over-provision) in

respect of last year 1 (432)
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary

differences 6,135 (438)
Notional profits tax 19,638 1,909

(b) BIAEXHESTHENREABRTE
HYEIRIT

(b) The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

-:"I 2013

applicable tax rates is as follows:

2 EMSHAT A

REBMEHE16.5%(2013 : 16.5%)
SHEmMEIE

— KRB IEER

AT 03R B 2 O R TE R

FRERTBANTIELE

LEEBEETR / GBR)
HEMIAL

Profit before notional profits tax 136,882 12,350
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate

of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) 22,586 2,038
One-off tax reduction (10) (10)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 8,285 8,220
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (11,224) (7,907)
Under-provision / (Over-provision) in

respect of last year 1 (432)
Notional tax expense 19,638 1,909

7. BEEERHE
ErTEERREZABZEEKE (T
FEABWA - FELZEMITESRTE
RAEBUERSFNFERRBEHKREIE
BIRNAEEEE T FEFTE - W
BOoHMARKRE BEEEEBEY
¥ RERSBMANEBFEE - AVBF]
AIRET  BHEEESNEINE
FEREEERER®ER59%(2013:
5.9%) °
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Rate of return on fixed assets

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income
(excluding interest income, interest expenses and net realised and revaluation
gains or losses on derivative financial instruments and structured notes)
divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed
assets include property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The POTF
is expected to meet a target rate of return on fixed assets of 5.9% (2013:
5.9%) per year as determined by the Financial Secretary.

(BIRITERRS)N - 2 BB F TSI -
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)
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BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund

8. W% REREM

Property, plant and equipment

T RIEF
Land and

RAREE  RERER
Plant and

machinery

Furniture
buildings and fittings

5% 3
201244 71H
VN &

HE /i
A201343431H

F2013F 4818
BB/ B

HE /
#201453A31H

RitirE
20124818
FNEA

A

HE / i m B
#20134%3H318

#2013F 4818
FNEA

HE / FHiF o B
#20145£3A31H

IRERE
2014%3H31H
20133318

Cost

At 1 April 2012
Additions / Transfers
Adjustments
Disposals

At 31 March 2013

At 1 April 2013
Additions / Transfers
Disposals

At 31 March 2014

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2012

Charge for the year
Adjustments

Written back on disposal

At 31 March 2013

At 1 April 2013

Charge for the year
Written back on disposal
At 31 March 2014

Net book value
31 March 2014
31 March 2013

HE
Motor
vehicles

Computer
systems

3,030,112 550,920 715,148 64,199 81,673 4,442,052
161,507 11,644 6,760 7,619 9,191 196,721

- (8,423) (236) - (208) (8,867)

- - S (4,015) - (4,015)
3,191,619 554,141 721,672 67,803 90,656 4,625,891
3,191,619 554,141 721,672 67,803 90,656 4,625,891
48,571 26,124 39,166 5,811 16,993 136,665

- (20,432)  (18,204) (3.365) - (42,001)
3,240,190 559,833 742,634 70,249 107,649 4,720,555
759,048 432,414 524,657 41,708 78,360 1,836,187
66,250 36,051 41,568 8,886 1,677 154,432

5 (35) - - - (35)

3 - - (3,848) - (3,848)

825,298 468,430 566,225 46,746 80,037 1,986,736
825,298 468,430 566,225 46,746 80,037 1,986,736
71,447 34,691 34,267 9,048 1,035 150,488

- (20,010)  (18,204) (3.324) - (41,538)

896,745 483,111 582,288 52,470 81,072 2,095,686
2,343,445 76,722 160,346 17,779 26,577 2,624,869
2,366,321 85,711 155,447 21,057 10,619 2,639,155
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(BR ¥ 5IaERRSN - S BELBIE T TS o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

(BIRITERRS)N - 2 BB F TSI -
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund

9. BEFEE Intangible assets M. IEESER Placement with the Exchange Fund
ERBABREREGERRA \ L ,
ComT)uter softwaregiicences and INER SRR A13.774E (2013 The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted to
system development costs 13.118BEL) ERN2EBTRRER HK$1,377.4 million  (2013: HK$1,311.8 million), being the original
5013 o 1.774EHT(2013 1 111888 L) A placement of HK$1,200.0 million plus HK$177.4 million (2013: HK$111.8
BEHERE D ARERAREREOFE - million) interest paid but not yet withdrawn at the end of the reporting
BE Cost ZERRENE (AR B ER) - BRTAE period. The term of the placement is six years from the date of placement,
F47 At beginning of year 350,956 338,590 RERBEN during which the amount of original placement cannot be withdrawn.
B/ B Additions/Transfers 9,908 12,304 _ o L . . : . .
o AT 6 HNEESTFRMEREFIABENEER Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined every January.
’ JUstments - KHE - ZBEXRESREMESBEFH The rate is the average annual investment return of the Exchange Fund’s
FR At end of year 360,864 350,956 FHEERERR - S3FHINEESESH Investment Portfolio for the past six years or the average annual yield of three-
e N ted - FLE—EFENFHEER  MERE year Exchange Fund Notes for the previous year subject to a minimum of zero
) cc;)umy ? ¢ ?mor sation Be%  TRE0% - 2014FETFER AT percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has been fixed at 3.6% per
6 At beginning of year 315,134 305,988 F3.6% ' 2013F BBF5.0% ° annum for the year 2014 and at 5.0% per annum for the year 2013.
FNER Charge for the year 9,714 9,146
KR o
FHR At end of year 324,848 315,134 12, G S
FIR At end of year 36,016 35,822

10. EEHRHE S

Held-to-maturity securities

(BT & 7 AR SR AT,

Debt securities at amortised cost:

EEEES  EFEMER2RAMKENEE
MmEE

Structured notes with interest at rates
determined by reference to the value
of the underlying investments - 388,148

2013 FIErFH Remaining maturity:
1Ak Over one year - 388,148

- REBEBASNET — Listed outside Hong Kong 108,688 108,881 .. o . o .
. . . EBUEEHFNRNSNTETIARHESRD Derivatives embedded in structured notes are separated from the notes and
-REBLE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 202,625 203,176 i o
. . B W ASTETEAR(MFE13) o accounted for as derivatives (note 13).
-3EEm — Unlisted 149,850 200,288
461,163 512,345
FIERFH Remaining maturity:
E2NES Within one year 208,588 200,289
154 |k Over one year 252,575 312,056
461,163 512,345
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(BIRFRITERRS)N - 2 BB F TSI - (BIRITERRS)N - 2 BB F TSI -
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.) Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)
BHREZEHES Post Office Trading Fund BHREZEHS Post Office Trading Fund
13. fTE4€ R T A Derivative financial instruments 15. EEERBH Provision for employee benefits

AT ERSHERBRATREN RS This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave and

EEZOM am i§§2013 . HBTEEFERMENEE N MINESHIEET obligations on contract-end gratuities payable to contract staff for services
Assets  Liabilities Assets Tl BfE - EREHERI12EARNBENRER rendered up to the end of the reporting period. Amounts to be settled
Derivatives embedded in ARBBEE Wit A BRI REAE within twelve months after the reporting period are classified as current
M EENNS AT A structured notes ) ) i 55066 Al A(SRME2()) - liabilities and included in “Creditors and accruals” (also see note 2())).
eI ERERS2TEL Derivative financial instruments are categorised as trading financial instruments 16. EEELHA Trading fund capital
FIVRERARFIAENERT under HKAS 39 and carried at fair value. Their negative fair values as shown above AR ZEERSHRE This represents the Government’s investment in the POTF.
A WIHEAFETR - K EFIIR have been recognised as liabilities and included in “Creditors and accruals”.
MARFHEERRRAR - LM 17. BR#HE Development reserve

A TEMRFREFTER] A

2013

14. EIERI X Deferred tax FU)RF R AR Balance at beginning and end of year 243,664 243,664
FER TS AR R R N MR A IR IE R 3k Major components of deferred tax recognised in the statement of financial position
HE TR S B NS and the movements during the year are as follows: 2014F3 A3V BEBRA/REENES - 7 The balance at 31 March 2014 is uncommitted and is earmarked for future
T FTERSREFBHER - development.
BREETER
BMESBE . .
|
Depreciation 18. RE & F Retained earnings

allowances 2013

in excess of  HhEEMEER

the related Other FO R Balance at beginning of year 1,566,093 1,560,872

depreciati(.)n "’]"d tfemporary Total comprehensive income for
amortisation differences FREAREIKES the year 117,244 10,441
201264 A1 B#E&S Balance at 1 April 2012 21,951 (827) 21,124 AEERERS Dividend proposed for the year - (5,220)
Credited to statement of FR Balance at end of year 1,683,337 1,566,093
NI G S El comprehensive income (285) (153) (438)
20133 31 H &tk Balance at 31 March 2013 21,666 (980) 20,686
2013F4 1 B&H Balance at 1 April 2013 21,666 (980) 20,686
Charged / (Credited) to
statement of

REmERE RN / (B0E) comprehensive income 6,414 (279) 6,135
201453831 A&t Balance at 31 March 2014 28,080 (1,259) 26,821

Hongkong Post Annual Report 2013/14 EBHBEIR 2013/14



78 R EEMiE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rt ¥ &M iE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 79

(BR ¥ 5IaERRSN - S BELBIE T TS o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

(BR¥F5IaERASN - SRELBEE T TSI o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund

19. |BRE Proposed dividend 21. HBEEATNRS Related party transactions

£2013/14FE - € BE SR ARBER
BELET  BFEREEESEREHR
AEEREREIELEERE © 7£2012/13%F
B MBEFRERERBEFELZ2EK
m MR EBREERRRZENFE
LB BRI HM50% B 2R B R E

il

For the year 2013-14, no appropriation for proposed dividend is made.
A request by the POTF to waive the dividend payout for the year is being
considered by the Government. For the year 2012-13, the proposed
dividend to the Government is based on the total comprehensive income
for the year and the target dividend payout ratio of 50% stated in the
annual business plan approved by the Secretary for Financial Services and

BTEAMBHRRABLIRENRZIN - FRE
FREATHEMERRXZHAMT

(a) BEESRETFTHBEATHRERIE—RE
BRARTE K E R AR R B0 R IR IR AS o AR 8 B LR
EHIUR A 4258 A2 15418787 (2013 : 2.964

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the

other material related party transactions for the year are summarised

as follows:

(@

services provided to related parties included general postal services
and agency services, which are compatible with postal related
services. The total revenue derived from these services amounted

H e the Treasury. -
A7) to HK$215.4 million (2013: HK$296.4 million);
M (b) HEATRUETLEEESHREEEEM  (b) services received from related parties included computer services,
TR EER Balance at beginning of year 41,712 36,492 RR% - EDRIRRTS - JIIRY  BFEERK printing services, training services, building management and
AR B Dividend paid 41,712) = HiE -  MAMFEE FRITBEETR maintenance, rental of accommodation, central administration
REFEBER S Dividend proposed for the year - 5,220 %o EsERBNTHEER1.776EHF T and auditing services. The total cost incurred on these services
ER Balance at end of year i 41712 (2013 : 1.466f &) : amounted to HK$177.6 million (2013: HK$146.6 million);
(0 2BEGAAEATEARTEE  B%F% (0 acquisition of fixed assets from related parties included fitting
20. RS RERES Cash and cash equivalents BHROHRELRE - E%Eiﬁﬁ\)%@?‘? C B out projects of post offices, acquisition of land and buildings,
: ) BREE  BREAGREH SELEEN plant and machinery, computer systems and motor vehicles. The
m BAR4REE A£0.91 1B T (2013 1 1.832188 total cost of these assets amounted to HK$91.1 million (2013:
JT) AR HK$183.2 million); and
B RRITH Cash and bank balances 149,557 160,382
RITIER Bank deposits 1,834,368 1,488,257 (d) 2EESMEHEANNRMRELETFHEER () the POTF received government grants relating to the provision
1,983,925 1648639 BRSHTER - £A - BAEF1,5108 of electronic services through a contractor. During the year,
Less: Bank deposits with original HBIT(2013 11,5408 L) ERREEERH government grants of HK$15.1 million (2013: HK$15.4 million)
W EA SR A3EA N EHRTER maturity beyond three months (317,000) (47,000) FERARA S R 0Bk - B Z=2014F3 8318 & were deducted from the related expenses incurred by the POTF.
HeRERES Cash and cash equivalents 1,666,925 1,601,639 BAT —EFENRAEREERE 0608 As at 31 March 2014, the balance of government grants carried
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BIT(2013 11,8708 % 7T) o

A BRE A IRt sk il B A TR A IR - 20fR
RRARER  WESKEBEARMASNNE
A mZERFRAERTREAL - WEARE
HRRR AR - BEEA T HEMNEEEERE
RAETE -

HE2014F3A31 HERGE A T BRINLEERTI
REFEMRRE °

forward to the next year amounted to HK$19.6 million (2013:
HK$18.7 million).

Services rendered to or received from related parties which were

also available to the public were charged at the rates payable by the

general public. Services which were available only to related parties

were charged on a full cost recovery basis. Fixed assets supplied by

related parties were charged at full cost.

Balances with related parties as at 31 March 2014 are set out in the

statement of financial position.
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(BR ¥ 5IaERRSN - S BELBIE T TS o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

(BR¥F5IaERASN - SRELBEE T TSI o
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund

22, &iE Commitments 23. ISR ERE (&) Financial risk management (continued)
(a) EAEIE (a) Capital commitments (b) E¥E B (b) Currency risk

201443310 - EBESRBEHHH
RAELBENEARAFEDT

At 31 March 2014, the POTF had capital commitments, so far as
not provided for in the financial statements, as follows:

-:Ill 2013

Authorised and

EEERESRTANQAFHEIARKRSR
EEREXEFMRBNER - 2EEEE
ERHEIINERER  WEEENBRE R L
SNEEK  IREBZERSHELEEBHS
REWRBTE -

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in currency
exchange rates. The POTF monitors its foreign currency exposure
and may consider to enter into foreign exchange contracts when
circumstances arise to protect it from the impact of currency
fluctuation during the normal course of business.

B REL contracted for 127,919 52,829
Authorised but not yet FR - ZEESERPAKRSIRAERHE N During the year, the POTF recognised a net exchange loss of
ERREEEAREL contracted for 257,343 435,328 B8R 5 58308 BT (2013 ¢ B WS FE HK$8.3 million (2013: a net exchange gain of HK$40.2 million) in
385,262 488,157 4,020887T) © the statement of comprehensive income.
TREZEZEESHNREHAERBHINER The table below summarises the POTF's foreign currency exposure
(b) REHERE (b) Operating lease commitments fR# at the end of the reporting period:

201438318 » T BUCHHEE W
KERENRRSEREER@BNOT :

At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum lease payments

2014 2013

under non-cancellable operating leases for leased properties BE a1 BE a1
were payable as follows: Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
m 2013 X US dollar 695,029 20,776 920,411 75,674
EUR Not later th 109,136 108,812 AR Renminb 193,344 > i i
1465 ot later than one year b .

y BT Euro 3,044 3,752 60,646 5,543

Later than one year but not N . . .
1512 BTZREF later than five years 270,567 243,681 AR Spsel Rieyiing Rghis 35,676 609,212 40811 814,346
A Later than five years 1.171.868 1086.219 Hfth oM Other foreign currencies 23,591 92 22,941 549
1551571 1438712 910,684 633,837 1,044,809 896,112

23. AR EE

(a)

REBE

AREBINNBAKRR  £EESKESR
BRERENERTANKREER - REHERE
RREZFRNES  SREES IEES
FREBRITER - EEECBERMAER
TAMKRERBRAKE
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Financial risk management

(a) Investment policy

To provide an ancillary source of income, surplus cash is invested
in a portfolio of financial instruments. The portfolio includes
held-to-maturity securities, structured notes, placement with the
Exchange Fund and bank deposits. It is the POTF's policy that all
investments in financial instruments should be principal-protected.

ERERAT —EAMBFENETLET
=SB R TR 38 N/ 2 0.5% ° 1A
RN/ RO EREHERAEE - K5
EHaEREEeEm ml2808 5T
(2013 : 350& 7 7L) °

ERENRA T — B8 BEE )RR K
BERETUIIEMEE LB TERTSE
B0 T AT e I/ 8 5% o IR BE 3L A/ R
DEREHMERARE  AFENEEAE
Wesag g R /81,6608 %L (2013 ¢
2,9108%7T) °

R CLBBEATE - RRTEXN2D
ERAREREHERARAHSRIA

The management considers a 0.5% increase / decrease in the
exchange rate of the US dollar against the Hong Kong dollar in
the coming financial year to be reasonably possible. Had such an
increase / decrease occurred at the end of the reporting period,
the total comprehensive income for the year would have been
increased / decreased by HK$2.8 million (2013: HK$3.5 million).

The management also considers a 5% increase / decrease in the
exchange rates of Special Drawing Rights and foreign currencies
other than US dollar against the Hong Kong dollar in the coming
financial year to be reasonably possible. Had such an increase /
decrease occurred at the end of the reporting period, the total
comprehensive income for the year would have been decreased /
increased by HK$16.6 million (2013: HK$29.1 million).

The above sensitivity analyses have been prepared assuming that
the change in exchange rates had been applied to the financial
instruments in existence at the end of the reporting period.
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(BR¥F5IaERASN - SRELBEE T TSI o
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BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund

23. M EREE ()
(© FEAR

Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

23. B ERER (&)
(d) FERR(E)

(c) Interest rate risk

= @ P 18 B 5 A R 8w 5| B BRI R
b o MERERAE— T D H/DFENXERR
&iﬁ.ﬁﬂlbi%”%—gﬂﬁfﬂ °

AFENXERESRTANQAFEERAD
SHREHTRBORER - ANEERSH
BEEES  ROFERRFSEHRNESZ
BIEMZAENE  EMHME LA Eit
BENRFERS K - AM - ARELE
EDREHEKAESR - TSN EESH IS

TERREENREEESOEN N HE -

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in
market interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Since all of the POTF’s structured notes, bank deposits and
held-to-maturity securities bear interest at fixed rates, their fair
values will fall when market interest rates increase. However, as
they are all stated at amortised cost, changes in market interest
rates will not affect their carrying amounts and the POTF’s profit
and reserves.

SNEESFHNEERRBRE -

EREMERE - SR ZHRNES LGS
HEHFNEEE XL N RTREER
W RELTRNBEEEHNTRPHORESE
RE)AT

For the placement with the Exchange Fund, the credit risk is
considered to be low.

At the end of the reporting period, the credit quality of investments
in held-to-maturity securities and structured notes, analysed by
the lower of ratings designated by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s or

2013

Fitch’s, was as follows:

REEFRIILNFERRNESLERIEES

Held-to-maturity securities
and structured notes
by credit rating

RensfEXRAKESHTAENKRRESR Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a Aal = Aa3/AA+ = AA- Aal to Aa3/AA+ to AA- 202,625 403,465
=SEEMEHNEREHMEBHER - ZLEE financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market AT = A3/A+ E A- AT 1o A3/A+ 1o A- 258,538 497,028
SEHANREREFNERAR - RRHERTE interest rates. The POTF is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk 461,163 900,493

HRBBMIZ LM XL - EEERAT—
B BREFEEOTIHFERESERER T Al 4818
/R A SO EE 2 o tnAa BEIE MR DR &
HERAZE  FANFBRARBZAERK
mEE M A508BIT(2013F - 608

JC) °

(d) FERR

EERRESRTAN - TRHEESRREE
BUOEEMSIBE - XXM BRANE

B o

EEESARTBRERREAEELER
HFHEFPRESIRRER S BRI BR
% HENZXSHFONEERBRAEINEE
BT AR © Kﬁ%E@A;@ﬁ%%%&
RGHFORNFMRAREERR - —REE
HUR &

REEREKEER
RBEBFRIRTT ©

© BB T BfF A T I
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(d)

because its bank balances bear interest at rates determined by
reference to market interest rates. The management considers
a 50 basis points increase / decrease in market interest rates in
the coming financial year to be reasonably possible. Had such an
increase / decrease occurred at the end of the reporting period,
the interest income and the total comprehensive income for the
year would have been increased / decreased by HK$0.5 million
(2013: HK$0.6 million).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will
fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur
a financial loss.

The POTF has policies in place to ensure that wholesale postal
services are provided to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Credit exposure to an individual counterparty is
restricted by credit limits. The counterparty’s payment profile
and credit exposure are continuously monitored by respective
management. Postal services to retail customers are substantially
settled in cash.

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed
banks in Hong Kong.

(e)

()

LEESHACRMEEMAAENRSEE
REBRASENERSHERBANIKREE

RBESRER
MBETRREHBHEETRES R A EAR
MEERBERENER -

EERRPECRBRIE  £EEXSBBE
AENRSHERERERDES  BR
AENMEESHEEREANNESERK -

FL At B 75 L B
HEHSHEANRESFI1AEENIINEESTER
BERGE)WNEDHMAEDEMBRERRE - B
2014438318 » 7£2013F FM2014F B X
0/ R A SO EE B M H B = A E A BN
T At EEARN R FE &SN K580
BB (2013 : 550887T) °

(e)

(f)

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the
POTF is equal to their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in
meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The POTF manages liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of
cash required and monitoring its working capital to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements could be met.

Other financial risk

The POTF is exposed to financial risk arising from change in the
interest rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund which is
determined every January (note 11). It was estimated that, as at
31 March 2014, a 50 basis point increase / decrease in the interest
rates for 2013 and 2014, with all other variables held constant,
would increase / decrease the profit for the year and reserves by
HK$5.8 million (2013: HK$5.5 million).

BBBBEFR 2013/14



84 MM EME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS M| KM E NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 85
(BIRFRITERRS)N - 2 BB F TSI - (B BIEBRSN + & FELUB RS F LIS -
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.) Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)
BHREEERS Post Office Trading Fund BHREEEHRS Post Office Trading Fund
23. I EMmEE (E) Financial risk management (continued) 24. CHEMERBZE2014F3A318LEFEHAK  Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
(9) ATE (g) Fair values ERMER] - MEARZRENTELE interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
EERTEEEN AR T AN ATLEERE The fair values of financial instruments quoted in active markets ended 31 March 2014
WEMERANTIBREET - NEARE are based on their quoted prices at the end of the reporting

HEAMBERERZEL B BEETHIAEEE  Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has

= = , Bl =% = SN ER A H | i o SN S\ N . . .
TIBRE - RINRERAMBEANES perlod.. In the apsence of such quoted market pr?ces, fair Yalues WMZIEBE] FEALZE HpBEREE  issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
&R AR EUETT G EATE - are estimated using present value or other valuation techniques,

201463 A3 AL FEHAER * XREH  which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2014 and

using inputs based on market conditions existing at the end of the RIEAR B TSR R ERNAIEE] ~ SRR k2% - which have not been early adopted in these financial statements.

reporting period.
EERED PR SIER] « EARRBAEB IR The POTFis in the process of making an assessment of what the impact

ST BB AT o - . o . . . / AT A . what
ii;fﬁﬁy;;ﬂﬁﬂ;ﬂzﬁﬁ%jm%T Al flhanC|a| instruments Tre stated in th? slra‘;e.::ent Oi ﬂnanhc@ REEEReEENTEETN G - EZ BRI/ of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected
Tez i g f?smoln at amounts equal to or not materially different from their IF EBESBERARMNZEEE] - FER  to be in the period of initial adoption. So far it has concluded that the
ar values. MBRBIAAEeHEBESHNBEERNENITE  adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the POTF's
R2014F3A31AUAFEFENSRBTA The carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair RRBRERTE - results of operations and financial position.
, F NI \:%‘_é /_\*E\ N i i H Y = e (= 1 i i i
REE  EAFEN=EFRRAT ;élue a; a.t 3; Marcbh |2014 according o three levels of fair value NS REEAE T RFED TS 3B H%  The following developments may result in new or amended disclosures
Ierarchy 15 snown below: R ISR B ER TSRS B RHEEE in future financial statements:
B eBRTANATEABRNEESR Level 1 : fair values of financial instruments are quoted prices
ﬁﬁmi?ﬁfﬁﬁgﬁﬁ%ﬁ’\ﬁﬁﬁ(*@ (.unela.dj.usted) in active markets for identical assets or £ BHS Effective for
FE) liabilities; ZEBBERMN accounting periods
o - o SrrEEXR beginning on or after
F28: ERMITEMAFEUBEIRBATF Level 2 : fair values of financial instruments are determined § J J
BEEREUMINEEXBBENEE involving inputs other than quoted prices included in EBGEAE 165 - 2016%1A1H  Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, 1 January 2016
(B ) sk M (B B M) o & Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either Zﬁﬁ”iﬁxﬁ:)ﬁjﬁiﬁﬁﬁii :Jlant ag|d Twpment and HKAS 38,
5 = . . . . N RIE38SE WAV AE | i ntangible Assets
RYEET & directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and L EE BT R  @iftfiezifon of Accamiahle Mealeds o
F3: EMTENATFTEEIEENITHEE Level 3 : fair values of financial instruments are determined with Depreciation and Amortisation
MSHIE - BT BRREERET - inputs that are not based on observable market data EH PRI E36% 201441818 Amendments to HKAS 36, Impairment of 1 January 2014
(unobservable inputs). [BERE] MIBET Assets
— JEeMEE R KE S RERIHE - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
$2% Level 2 Non-Financial Assets
m 2013 BB B REERIFEINE 2018%F181H HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
[€@T A
IE Assets 3 P A g A
Derivative financial BB EWEERFE 155 ¢ 201791818 HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with 1 January 2017
2R BH WA
e nstruments i ) [REBEFPEHZWA ] Customers
&5E Liabilities
Derivative financial
MESFTE instruments - 55,066
THESHEENESHEBEIEAFIRNE No financial assets or financial liabilities were classified under
3 o Level 1 or Level 3.
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